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1 objections.

2           MR. STURTEVANT:  We have no objection, Your

3 Honor.

4           JUDGE ALBERS:  Hearing no objection, Staff

5 Cross Exhibit 9 is admitted.  Anything further from

6 Staff concerning Mr. Stafford?

7           MR. LANNON:  No, that's it for Staff.  Thank

8 you, Your Honor.

9           JUDGE ALBERS:  Mr. Doshi or Ms. Satter, do

10 one of you still have questions for Mr. Stafford?

11           MS. SATTER:  Mr. Doshi will.

12           JUDGE ALBERS:  Go ahead.

13           MR. DOSHI:  Yes, Your Honor.  Thank you.  In

14 previous discussions with Company counsel, we

15 indicated that we would like 60 minutes to cross

16 examine Mr. Stafford.  In light of the somewhat more

17 relaxed schedule, would it be all right if we went

18 over 60 minutes?

19           MR. STURTEVANT:  I'm not going to agree to

20 expand his cross just because there's no other

21 witnesses available today.  That's the purpose of

22 establishing estimates in a schedule.

23           JUDGE YODER:  Are we talking 65 minutes?

24 The estimates are estimates, and we've gone over them

25 extensively before, but we try and keep to them.  How
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1 much are you talking?  If you say three or four hours,

2 I will say no.

3           MR. DOSHI:  Seventy-five to 90 minutes.

4           JUDGE YODER:  We'll see.  As indicated, they

5 are estimates, but we do hope that the lawyers try and

6 hold to them, but let's see where we end up.  So I

7 won't probably be keeping a clock on you unless it

8 gets close to my lunchtime.

9           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, Your Honor.

10                        CROSS EXAMINATION

11 QUESTIONS BY MR. DOSHI:

12      Q.   Good morning, Mr. Stafford.  How are you?

13      A.   Fine, thank you.

14      Q.   As I'm sure you recall, we met before, last

15 month in the gas case.  I have a few questions for you

16 today about your testimony in this case.

17           I'd like to begin by showing you two

18 documents that were schedules to the Company's initial

19 filing, and I'm going to mark these as -- actually, we

20 marked these yesterday as AG Cross Exhibit 1 and AG

21 Cross Exhibit 2.  We distributed copies of these to

22 the parties and to Your Honors yesterday.  The two

23 documents are Schedule C21 and Schedule C8 from the

24 Company's initial filing.  May I approach the witness,

25 please?
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1           JUDGE YODER:  Sure.

2      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Mr. Stafford, do you

3 recognize these two documents?

4      A.   Yes.

5      Q.   Did you sponsor these two documents as part

6 of the Company's initial filing in this case?

7      A.   That's correct.  Looking at what we marked

8 as AG Cross Exhibit 1, Schedule C21, would you agree

9 that Line 5 of that document shows the Company's

10 public relations expenses for the four years, 2009,

11 2010, 2011 and 2012?

12      A.   Yes.

13      Q.   Looking at the document we marked as AG

14 Cross Exhibit 2, Schedule C8, would you agree that

15 this document shows various advertising expense

16 accounts for the calendar year 2012?

17      A.   That's correct.

18           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you.  Your Honor, at this

19 time, I'd like to move for the admission of these two

20 documents, AG Cross Exhibit 1 and AG Cross Exhibit 2.

21           JUDGE YODER:  Any objection?

22           MR. STURTEVANT:  No objection, Your Honor.

23           JUDGE YODER:  AG Cross Exhibits 1 and 2 will

24 be admitted as evidence in this docket.

25           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you very much.  Next I'd
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1 like to move on to the topic of depreciation rate

2 adjustments that have been proposed in this case as

3 well as in the Company's recent August 19, 2013

4 template modification filing, which has been

5 documented as 13-0517.

6           Your Honor, may I approach the witness

7 again?

8           JUDGE YODER:  Yes.

9           MR. DOSHI:  I'm going to hand Mr. Stafford

10 two documents.  One is a copy of -- actually, I'm

11 going to hand him one document, which is a copy of the

12 Depreciation Study that was attached as a work paper

13 to his Exhibit 1.0 in this case.  We are marking this

14 depreciation study as AG Cross Exhibit 5.

15           (Whereupon an off-the-record discussion was

16 held.)

17           JUDGE YODER:  Back on the record.

18           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, Your Honor.

19      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Mr. Stafford, do you

20 recognize this document?

21      A.   Yes, I do.

22      Q.   Can you briefly explain what it is?

23      A.   It is a summary report by our consulting

24 firm we retained, Gannett Fleming, to conduct a

25 depreciation rate study for Ameren Illinois Electric
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1 Operations, and the study was conducted in 2012.  And

2 what the study shows is the analysis conducted of the

3 utility plant accounts for Ameren Illinois Electric,

4 the analysis retirements, cost of removable salvage,

5 service lives, and that analysis was conducted to

6 establish new depreciation rates for each individual

7 utility plant.

8      Q.   Thank you.  How often does the Company

9 engage this consultant at Gannett Fleming, Inc. or a

10 similar consultant to produce depreciation rate

11 studies like this?

12      A.   The objective is to conduct a study

13 approximately every five years or so, and so we had an

14 agreement with staff to conduct a study.  In 2012, we

15 had made a commitment to do so, and we were around the

16 five-year time frame for conducting the additional

17 study.  And, then, therefore, we conducted that study

18 in 2012, submitted that to the Commission through a

19 collective letter notice filing and then established

20 new depreciation rates January 22, 2013 based upon the

21 result was of this study.

22      Q.   Thank you.  Could you please refer to Page

23 Roman Numeral II-5 of this document?  Do you see

24 towards the bottom of the page or the paragraph at the

25 bottom of the page, it says, "The Iowa curves were
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1 developed at the Iowa State College Engineering

2 Experiment Station through an extensive process of

3 observation and classification of the ages at which

4 industrial property had been retired.  A report of the

5 the study which resulted in the classification of

6 property survivor characteristics into 18 type curves

7 was published in 1935 in the form of the Experiment

8 Stations Bulletin 125."

9           Then it refers to the curves being presented

10 in a text, and Footnote 2 shows that the text was

11 published in 1953.  Do you see all that?

12      A.   I don't see 1953.  I see 1935, 1957, but I'm

13 with you, generally speaking, on what you're --

14      Q.   I was referring to Footnote 2 at the bottom

15 of that page.

16      A.   Oh, I see, Footnote 2, correct.

17      Q.   And then it says, in 1957, and then if we

18 skip a few pages to Roman Numeral II-10, it says that

19 "an Iowa State graduate student submitted a thesis

20 presenting his developments of the fourth family

21 consisting of four O type survival curves."  Do you

22 see that?

23      A.   Yes.

24      Q.   Now, can you please skip ahead to Roman

25 Numeral II-18, which I guess is eight pages forward in
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1 the document?  It says in the last partial paragraph

2 at the bottom of that page, it says, "The Iowa type

3 curves are used in the study to smooth those original

4 stub curves which are expressed as a percent surviving

5 at ages in years."  Do you see that?

6      A.   Yes.

7           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I'm going to

8 object to this line of questioning.  Apparently

9 counsel is simply reading and asking Mr. Stafford to

10 agree with what this depreciation study says.  I

11 recognize that it's Mr. Stafford's work paper, and I

12 don't necessarily have an objection to it coming into

13 the record, but at this point, I don't really see the

14 point of going through and reading all of the pieces

15 of the depreciation study and having Mr. Stafford

16 confirm that's what it says.

17           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, I'll get to the

18 point right now.

19           JUDGE YODER:  Okay.  Then the objection is

20 overruled.

21      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) My question for Mr. Stafford

22 is, do you believe it's appropriate to use Company

23 data on survivorship of plants from recent years and

24 use curves developed at Iowa State University in the

25 1930s from observation of utility companies of that

kleiser
Typewritten Text
ICC Docket 13-0501/13-0517 (cons.)AG Exhibit 6.0Page 9 of 49



226

1 time to smooth the data?

2           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I'm going to

3 object to the question as outside the scope of Mr.

4 Stafford's testimony and lacking in foundation.

5 Mr. Stafford did not prepare the depreciation study.

6 Certainly, he can rely on it, but I believe the

7 question should be directed to the preparer.

8           JUDGE YODER:  I'll sustain it in

9 anticipation of a better foundation for asking him

10 that question.

11      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Mr. Stafford, is it correct

12 that the modification to schedule FRC2 of the

13 Company's annual -- of the Company's formula rate

14 template is based -- that you sponsored in Exhibit

15 18.3 of your surrebuttal testimony is based, in part,

16 on this document?

17      A.   The change in FRC2 for depreciation rates is

18 based upon the results of the study in the aggregate.

19      Q.   Do you believe it's appropriate to change

20 the Company's formula rate template based on a study

21 that smooths Company data based on observations of the

22 utility plant from the 1930s?

23           MR. STURTEVANT:  Again, I'm going to object

24 as to outside the scope of Mr. Stafford's testimony

25 and on a foundational basis.  I mean, he's asking
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1 Mr. Stafford questions about the methodology used in

2 the depreciation study.  As I said before, I think

3 it's appropriate for Mr. Stafford, as an expert, to

4 rely on the results of the depreciation study, but if

5 there are questions about the methodology, those would

6 have been best directed to the preparer, and the time

7 to have done that would have been discovery.

8           JUDGE YODER:  Any response?

9           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, the witness is

10 advocating a change to the Company's formula rate

11 template in this docket as well as in Docket 13-0517

12 based specifically on this report that I'm speaking

13 of, so I'd like to understand the justification for

14 using this report.

15           JUDGE YODER:  Well, I'll overrule the

16 objection to the extent he is qualified to answer

17 them.  You can answer.

18      A.   Could I have the question read back, please?

19           (Wherein, the requested portion of the

20 record was read by the court reporter.)

21      A.   Well to begin with, I am not familiar with

22 how the Iowa curve works fully.  I have a general

23 understanding.  I don't know to the extent the data

24 from the 1930 is utilized, per se, as you indicate.

25 Iowa curves are recognized an industry standard, a
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1 general industry practice as part of conducting

2 depreciation rate studies.  Our consultant that we

3 hire to do this work is an industry expert in

4 depreciation rate studies.  He's utilizing best

5 practice, to my knowledge, in conducting this study,

6 and my belief would be that if he's utilizing best

7 practice, which is my understanding, in the way he has

8 conducted the study comports with preferred industry

9 practice and would be the correct approach to use for

10 adjustments to depreciation rates.  Therefore, based

11 upon the study in the aggregate and a consultant

12 preparing the study and their knowledge and practice

13 within the industry, I would consider it appropriate

14 to adjust the template for the change in depreciation

15 rates.

16      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) All right.  Thank you.  Next

17 can you turn to your Exhibit 18.3, which I believe is

18 the Company's updated formula rate template following

19 the August 19, 2013 filing?  And please turn to

20 schedule FRC2 on Page 10.  Mr. Olivero, who is staff

21 counsel, as you know, asked you a couple of questions

22 about this schedule earlier today.  Would it by

23 correct to say that the only change to this schedule

24 in the Company's August 19, 2013 filing is the

25 insertion of Line 8A?  Actually, let me strike that.
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1 What I said is not correct.

2      A.   Would it be correct to say that the only

3 change to the schedule is the insertion of Line 8A and

4 then the additional insertion of Line 8B, which adds

5 the former Line 8 with the Line 8A and finally the

6 change to Line 10, which multiplies new Line A/B,

7 which is in place of former Line A by the

8 jurisdictional allocators?

9           MR. STURTEVANT:  And just to be clear, we're

10 talking about changes made in the -- to reflect the

11 August 19th filing?

12           MR. DOSHI:  That's correct.

13      A.   I agree with that.

14      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Okay.  Thank you.  Is it

15 correct to say that the values in Line 8A are composed

16 of the increment in depreciation rate due to the study

17 from Gannett Fleming times the Company's plant as of

18 December 31st, 2012?  Plus, the other component of

19 Line 8A is the increment in depreciation rates, thanks

20 to the study, times the projected plant additions for

21 2013.  Would that be correct?

22      A.   That's correct.

23      Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Would it be correct to

24 say that in the past, before this template change for

25 August 19, the depreciation expense for the filing
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1 year in the formula rate template was derived from

2 roughly the prior year's FERC filed depreciation

3 expense as found on Line 1 of Schedule FRC2, plus the

4 estimated depreciation on the projected plant

5 additions, which is calculated on Appendix 8 of the

6 template, which can be found on Page 27 of Exhibit

7 18.3, which is actually the second page of Appendix 8?

8      A.   I'd agree with that.

9      Q.   Now, if you look on Page 27 of Exhibit 18.3,

10 which is the second page of Appendix 8, at Lines 19

11 through 21, the depreciation rates for distribution

12 plant, general plant and tangible plant for the prior

13 year in this case, 2012, is calculated using FERC Form

14 1 depreciation figures, and the average plant in

15 service balance for the previous year here being 2012;

16 is that correct?

17      A.   That's correct.

18      Q.   So using the approach on Line 21 -- I'm

19 sorry, Lines 19 through 21 of that page that we're

20 looking at, Page 27 of Exhibit 18.3, the estimated

21 depreciation rate -- this is for 2012, which before

22 the template change would be used as an estimate of

23 depreciation on projected plant additions for 2013 --

24 the estimated depreciation rate would be 3.26 percent

25 for distribution plant and 2.43 percent for general
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1 plant; is that correct?

2      A.   That's correct.

3      Q.   Okay.  So getting back to Schedule FRC2, the

4 adjustment seeks to find the increment from that

5 3.26 percent and 2.43 percent, which were calculated

6 on Appendix 8, up to the new estimated depreciation

7 accrual rates from the Gannett Fleming study, which

8 are 3.50 percent for distribution plant and

9 5.56 percent for general plant, and I'm reading that

10 from Roman Numeral I-5 of the study; is that correct?

11      A.   That's correct.

12      Q.   Why do you think it wouldn't be appropriate

13 to continue using the Appendix 8 estimated

14 depreciation rates for projected plant additions in

15 2013, and if it turns out that those estimates were

16 significantly off, then make it up using the

17 reconciliation process in the following year's formula

18 rate uptake filing?

19           MR. STURTEVANT:  Did you say Appendix 8 or

20 Appendix A?

21           MR. DOSHI:  Appendix 8.

22           MR. STURTEVANT:  Okay.

23      A.   Well, the reason is that we know that in

24 2013, depreciation rates changed, and we are

25 calculating depreciation on 2013 projected additions,
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1 and, in fact, the entire projected additions

2 adjustment is designed to estimate what the change in

3 depreciation expense will be for 2013, what the change

4 in plant will be for the entire group of utility

5 plants and what the change in the entire depreciation

6 reserve will be in 2013.  So by using rates that you

7 know are in effect for 2013, rather than outdated 2012

8 rates, you provide a matching of 2013 projected

9 additions with your best estimate of what the changes

10 on the 2013 projected depreciation reserve will be,

11 along with your best estimate of what 2013

12 depreciation expense will be.

13           And, furthermore, this adjustment is only in

14 the filing year.  It's not in the reconciliation year.

15 As you indicated a few minutes ago, this adjustment

16 really is temporary in nature, because ultimately we

17 will reconcile 2013 with actual data, and the benefit

18 of making this adjustment now is that you are

19 providing your best estimate of what 2013 will be, and

20 in that process, you should further limit the

21 reconciliation adjustment that's required one year

22 from now and enters (phonetic) on the reconciliation.

23           So, in summary, it provides a better

24 matching for 2013, and it should also limit the

25 variances from the reconciliation with interest one
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1 year from now when we do the 2013 reconciliation.

2      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Thank you.  If you go back

3 and look at historical depreciation accrual studies

4 that were performed for the company -- I'm not sure if

5 they were performed by Gannett Fleming or similar

6 consultants.  How accurate were they as a predicted

7 measure of what the Company's actual depreciation in

8 the next couple of years after the study would be?

9      A.   Well, the study itself actually sets the

10 depreciation rates.  It's not designed to measure

11 accuracy.  Once those rates go in effect, they are

12 actually utilized by the Company for depreciation

13 expense.  So in that respect, I would consider them a

14 hundred percent accurate, because you're using the

15 results of the study, and you're utilizing those for

16 calculation of depreciation expense once those rates

17 go into effect.

18      Q.   So will it be the case in next year's

19 formula rate update filing when we look at Appendix 8,

20 rather the second page of Appendix 8, which is Page 27

21 of your 18.3, in next year's formula rate update

22 filing where we calculate the depreciation rates from

23 FERC values for 2013?  Will those depreciation rates,

24 again on Appendix 8, Lines 19 through 21, next year's

25 filing, will those depreciation rates exactly match
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1 the Gannett Fleming rates?

2      A.   Well, actual experience is based on actual,

3 and we are working with our best estimate right now.

4 The final results for 2013 will be a function, among

5 other things, of actual utility plant additions,

6 actual utility plant retirements, the actual cost of

7 removal, actual salvage, and actual and estimates are

8 just that.  They're not intended to be equal, and our

9 goal to provide the best estimate possible here.

10      Q.   If I'm not mistaken, you said a couple of

11 minutes ago that the Gannett Fleming, the rates in the

12 Gannett Fleming study set the new depreciation rates

13 for the Company.  So why would there be a discrepancy

14 in actual 2013 depreciation rates versus the rates

15 from the study?

16      A.   The actual rates applied to utility plant

17 accounts are set from this, and they're a hundred

18 percent accurate from what's being implemented.  What

19 you're seeing here is the application of depreciation

20 rates to actual utility plant and doing any

21 calculation from FERC Form 1 after you know what 2013

22 actual data is.  So when I'm referring to depreciation

23 rates being set and being a hundred percent accurate,

24 they are, but those rates are then applied to utility

25 plant accounts, and this calculation is a function of
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1 other factors, not the least of which is the fact that

2 actual utility plant, it may be different than the

3 estimates that we're working from.

4      Q.   Okay.  All right.  Thank you.  I'd like to

5 turn back to Schedule FRC2, which, again, is --

6 sorry -- again, is on Page 10 of your Exhibit 18.3.

7 Mr. Olivero asked earlier today if -- actually, I'll

8 ask a slightly different version of Mr. Olivero's

9 question.

10           Would a layperson looking at Line 8A of

11 Schedule FRC2 be able to go to Work Paper 18, which is

12 contained in your Exhibit 18.4, by the way, and derive

13 the three numbers that are shown on Line 8A, 10.93

14 million, 5.084 million and 1.906 million?

15      A.   As I indicated, the information to derive

16 those numbers were ultimately coming from Staff

17 exhibits, so the layperson would have to do some

18 additional work to do that.  Staff relied on Data

19 Request Responses from the Company for the information

20 that they included in their schedule.  So the

21 layperson would need to look at Staff's schedule, and

22 then they would need to look at the data request that

23 Staff relied on for purposes of making the proposed

24 adjustment.

25      Q.   Thank you.  Do you think it might be more
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1 helpful for the public to have a clearer instruction

2 as to where the data on Line 8A and Schedule FRC2 is

3 coming from?

4           MR. STURTEVANT:  Objection.  It calls for

5 speculation.

6           MR. DOSHI:  I'll rephrase.

7           JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

8      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Do you think -- Mr. Stafford,

9 do you have any immediate family members who are

10 adults and don't understand utility rate-making very

11 well?

12      A.   Yes.

13      Q.   Could you tell me what exactly kinds of

14 relation you have that fits that description?

15           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I'm just going

16 to object to the relevance of line of questioning

17 regarding Mr. Stafford's family.  I honestly don't

18 think it's appropriate.

19           MR. DOSHI:  Okay.  I'll rephrase the

20 question.

21           JUDGE YODER:  Okay.

22      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Mr. Stafford, would there be

23 a way that the adjustments or the source data for the

24 adjustment on Line 8A could be made clearer on this

25 template?
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1      A.   I don't believe so.  The template is

2 designed to source to Work Paper 18, and that Work

3 Paper 18 is provided with the filing, and granted

4 within Work Paper 18 itself, the Company could have

5 presented additional information and made that

6 clearer.  But within the template, which I believe is

7 the subject matter of your question, I think it's

8 clear to the reader that Work Paper 18 is the source

9 or the underlying information.

10      Q.   Would you agree that Work Paper 18 only

11 shows the total adjustment of 15.8 million, which was

12 Mr. Ostrander's adjustment in, I believe, his Staff

13 Exhibit 7, and does not show the three specific

14 numbers on Line 8A of your Schedule FRC2?

15      A.   Yes, I would agree with that.

16      Q.   Okay.  Thank you.

17           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, may I approach the

18 witness?

19           JUDGE YODER:  Sure.

20           MR. DOSHI:  I'm going to provide the witness

21 with what we're marking as AG Cross Exhibit 6.

22      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) So AG Cross Exhibit 6

23 consists of Work Paper C-2.23A from the Company's

24 initial filing.  Did you sponsor this, Mr. Stafford?

25      A.   Yes.
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1      Q.   And the next document of three in AG Cross

2 Exhibit 6 is the Company's response to Staff Data

3 Request JMO3.5R.  Did you prepare and sponsor that

4 response, Mr. Stafford?

5      A.   I did.

6      Q.   And then, finally, the third item in AG

7 Cross Exhibit 6 is the Company's response to Staff

8 Data Request JMO 14.01.  Did you sponsor that

9 response?

10      A.   I did.

11      Q.   I'd like to ask you a couple of quick

12 questions about these documents.  On the first item,

13 Work Paper C-2.23a, where the Company was estimating

14 the depreciation for 2013 on projected plant

15 additions, you take the projected electric

16 distribution additions of 166.958 million and multiply

17 it times the estimated depreciation rate of

18 3.26 percent; is that correct?

19      A.   Correct.

20      Q.   And does 3.26 percent come from Appendix 8

21 of the formula rate template that we discussed before,

22 Lines 19 through 21?  Line 19, actually, to be

23 specific, Column G of Line 19 on Page 27 of Exhibit

24 18.3?

25      A.   Yes.
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1      Q.   And back to the cross exhibit on the first

2 page, you take General Electric plants of -- projected

3 plant addition in the category of General Electric

4 plant of 17.339 million and multiply that times the

5 depreciation rate of 2.43 percent; is that correct?

6      A.   Correct.

7      Q.   And the 2.43 percent, again, comes from Line

8 20 of Appendix 8 of the formula rate template; is that

9 correct?

10      A.   Correct.

11      Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  And then if you switch to

12 the Company's response to JMO3.5R, you look at the

13 attachment, Lines 1 and 2 show the net electric

14 distribution projected plant additions.  And would you

15 accept that the sum of the amount in Column B, Lines 1

16 and 2 is the same as the 166.958 million from the

17 first page of this cross exhibit?

18      A.   Yes.

19      Q.   And would you accept that the sum of

20 lines -- Column B, Lines 3 and 4 in the 3.05R attached

21 is the same as the 17.339 million for General Electric

22 plant from the first page of the cross exhibit?

23      A.   Yes.

24      Q.   And then in Column C of 3.05R -- rather

25 JMO-3.05R attached, it looks like the response to the
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1 request from Mr. Ostrander, the Company is calculating

2 what would be the depreciation of distribution plant

3 at 3.50 percent and of general plant at 5.56 percent;

4 is that correct?

5      A.   Correct.

6      Q.   And those rates come from the Gannett

7 Fleming study; is that correct?

8      A.   Yes.

9      Q.   Okay.  And would you agree that in preparing

10 his adjustment for the depreciation rate, the new

11 depreciation rate and projected plant additions,

12 Mr. Ostrander took the difference in the depreciation

13 as calculated on JMO-3.05 attached minus the

14 depreciation that you originally calculated in Work

15 Paper C-2.23a?

16      A.   As it applies to projected additions, yes.

17      Q.   Yes.  Okay.  Thank you.  Then, would you

18 agree that the difference in estimated depreciation

19 rate on distribution, electric distribution plants

20 from the estimated depreciation from Appendix A up to

21 the new accrual rate from the study, in other words

22 3.50 percent minus 3.26 percent, would you agree

23 that's 24 basis points or .24, one percentage point?

24      A.   Yes.

25      Q.   And would you agree that the increment of
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1 depreciation rate on electric general plant is --

2 sorry -- is 5.56 percent -- that's the new accrual

3 rate from the study -- minus 2.43 percent, which is

4 3.13 percent, or 313 basis points?  Would you agree to

5 that?

6      A.   Yes.

7      Q.   Okay.  Thanks.  Now, then, I'd like to refer

8 you to the Company's response to JMO14.01.  If you

9 look at the attachment -- or, actually, let's look at

10 the data request sheet, which is the fourth page of my

11 cross exhibit packet.  The question said, "Similar to

12 the Company's response to Staff Data Request JMO3.05,

13 for the filing year revenue requirement, please apply

14 the electric depreciation rates effective January 1st,

15 2013 to the December 31st, 2012 plant balances to

16 calculate the incremental amount of the depreciation

17 expense."  Do you see that?

18      A.   Yes.

19      Q.   And then looking at this attachment or your

20 response to JMO-14.01, looking at Column C, Line 7 and

21 Column C, Line 8, it appears that you calculated an

22 increment in book depreciation rate for a distribution

23 plant of .22 percent rather than the .24 percent we

24 discussed just a minute earlier.

25      A.   Yeah, I see that.  I'm not sure why we
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1 didn't have .24 percent on here.  It appears it should

2 have been a little bit higher.

3      Q.   And then in Column C, Line 8, it says that

4 the increment is 1.07 percent instead of the 1 -- I'm

5 sorry -- instead of the 3.13 increment for General

6 Electric plant depreciation rate we discussed just a

7 minute earlier.  Do you see that?

8      A.   I see that.  I also note that there's a

9 Footnote 4 that provides an explanation for that

10 change, and I don't recall specifically why that is

11 the case at this time, but I'm noting that Footnote 4

12 explains why we use the increment of 1.22 percent and

13 an increment of 1.7 percent.  I would note that both

14 of the increments are lower than what we discussed a

15 few minutes ago.  If we had used the increment you

16 explained, we would have a higher depreciation expense

17 number.

18      Q.   In Footnote 4, there in JMO-114.01 attached,

19 3.28 was the old accrual rate as calculated in the

20 Gannet Fleming study; is that correct?  You can see

21 that Roman Numeral I-5 of the study.

22      A.   Yes, I see that.

23      Q.   And 4.49 percent, which is found in the

24 Footnote 4 on JMO-14.01 attached, was the old accrual

25 rate as calculated by the Gannet Fleming study for
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1 General Electric plants.  Would you agree to that?

2      A.   Yes, I see that.

3      Q.   In light of this discussion, do you think

4 the Company's response to JMO-14.01, attached, should

5 be revised?

6      A.   I don't believe so.  The fact that the

7 calculated depreciation rates, as shown on Roman

8 Numeral I-5, are 3.28 and 4.49 would be an indicator

9 that at that point in the study, using the 2011 plant,

10 that was embedded depreciation rate at that point in

11 time.  So what we are look at is an incremental change

12 in the depreciation rate to year-end plant.  Now, in

13 JMO-14.01, we're applying to the year-end 2012 plant,

14 and the study was applied to a year-end 2011 plant, so

15 there was a little bit of a time difference there.

16 But given what I'm reviewing on where you pointed to

17 me on the schedule, I can see the old, and I can see

18 the new rate.  We are applying this -- in JMO-14.01,

19 we are specifically applying the depreciate rates to

20 year-end plant, so I think it makes sense to use that

21 increment.  As we discussed, if we went the other

22 approach, we'd actually have higher depreciation

23 expense.

24      Q.   Do you believe it was appropriate to use one

25 set of increments and depreciation rates in your
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1 response to Mr. Ostrander for 2013 projected plant

2 additions and a different set of increments and

3 depreciation rates in your response to Mr. Ostrander

4 for December 31st, 2012 plant?

5      A.   Yes.  The Appendix 8 calculates 2013

6 projected depreciation expense, and for that we used

7 Gannett Fleming's depreciation rates actually for both

8 2013, projected additions, and 2012 year-end plant.

9 The only difference is what we are comparing it

10 against.  For 2013, we were comparing it against

11 Appendix 8, a calculation from FERC 401 to how

12 Appendix 8 calculates the existing rate in FERC Form

13 1, the specific calculation related to 2013 projected

14 additions.  We use that specific calculation to

15 compare the old rates against the new rates.  When

16 we're getting into year-end 2012 plant, that specific

17 calculation isn't there.  Rather, we're looking at the

18 study results themselves, and seeing that within the

19 study, at the year-end balance, the utility plant,

20 granted 2011, the existing rates are shown on Roman

21 numeral I-5, and we are comparing that against the new

22 rates.

23           So I believe that both approaches are

24 appropriate given that one calculation is year-end

25 plant, and the other is trying to replicate our best
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1 estimate of what the calculation for 2013 projected

2 addition should be.

3      Q.   The depreciation rates calculated on

4 Appendix 8 are based on the FERC depreciation figures

5 for 2012; are they not?

6      A.   They point to both beginning and end of year

7 values and calculate an average, so there's a specific

8 formula used for that calculation.  It's based on an

9 average year calculation.

10      Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  After we've been through

11 these discussion, looking at all these data request

12 responses, do you think it's possible to incorporate

13 these analyses into -- I'm sorry -- into Work Paper 18

14 as referenced on Line 8A of Schedule FRC2?

15      A.   Well, these data requests could, as you have

16 provided me, and WPC-2.3A, I think, was part of the

17 previous Work Paper 18 submission, but in any event,

18 you know, you're submitting this as a cross exhibit.

19 I agree, from a technical standpoint, that they are

20 related to Work Paper 18, and they provide some

21 additional transparency to the calculation and

22 depreciation expense, so, generally, I would say yes

23 to your question.

24      Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Sorry to take so long on

25 that topic.  I'd like to move on to the topic of the
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1 rate base to be used in the ROE collar calculation on

2 Schedule FRA-3.

3           MR. STURTEVANT:  Of 18.3?

4           MR. DOSHI:  Yes.

5      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) On your surrebuttal

6 testimony, Exhibit 18.0, Line 744 on Page 36 --

7 actually, let me withdraw that question.  I'm sorry.

8           Let's turn to Page 39 of your surrebuttal

9 testimony at Line 800.  The question is, "Mr. Effron

10 further claims that he has not proposed any changes

11 that affect the reconciliation revenue requirement

12 either directly or indirectly; is this correct?"

13           And your answer is, "No.  As explained

14 above, the reconciliation revenue requirement is one

15 of the key inputs into the ROE collar calculation.

16 Mr. Effron's modifications have the effects of

17 changing the amounts of the reconciliation revenue

18 requirement variance of collar on Schedule FRA4, Line

19 3."  Do you see that?

20      A.   Yes.

21      Q.   Is that your testimony?

22      A.   Yes.

23      Q.   Is it true that the reconciliation revenue

24 requirement is performed on Schedule FRA-1 Rec of the

25 template?
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1      A.   That's correct.

2      Q.   And has Mr. Effron proposed any changes to

3 Schedule to FRA-1 Rec?

4      A.   No.

5      Q.   Now, turning to Schedule FRA-3, other than

6 Line 1 on Schedule FRA-3, has Mr. Effron proposed any

7 changes to Schedule FRA-3?

8      A.   No direct changes.  However, change in Line

9 1 affects almost the entire schedule of FRA-3.

10 Virtually every number changes when you change Line 1,

11 a number of indirect changes resulting from that

12 change.

13      Q.   You mentioned in your testimony, Exhibit

14 18.0, your surrebuttal on Page 37, Line 773 --

15 actually, Lines 772 and 773, you state that

16 "Mr. Effron's proposal has the effects of lowering the

17 calculated amount on FRA-3, Lines 21 through 31 to

18 align with averages rather than year-end balances."

19 Now, looking at lines -- looking at Schedule FRA-3,

20 looking at Lines 21 and 22, these lines are based on

21 multiplying a rate base from Line 1 times a short-term

22 debt percent and the long-term debt percent

23 respectively and then multiplying those times relevant

24 interest rates respectively; is that correct?

25      A.   No.  Line 21 and 22 do not multiply by Line
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1 1.

2      Q.   But Lines 9 and 10 are derived from Line 1;

3 is that correct?

4      A.   That's correct.

5      Q.   So back to my original question about Lines

6 21 and 22.  Would it be fair to say that Mr. Effron's

7 proposed adjustment to Line 1 would tend to reduce the

8 values on Line 21 and 22?

9      A.   Yes, it would to the extent that average

10 rate base is less than year-end rate base.

11      Q.   Okay.  And Line 23 is based on multiplying

12 the rate base times -- the rate base from Line 1 times

13 a certain credit facility expense rate; is that

14 correct?

15      A.   It's multiplying by a credit facility

16 percent, correct.

17      Q.   So Line 23 would be reduced by Mr. Effron's

18 adjustment; is that right?

19      A.   Correct.

20      Q.   Wouldn't Line -- so if what you said is

21 true, that Line 21, 22 and 23 would be reduced by

22 Mr. Effron's adjustment, then isn't it likely that

23 Line 24 would thereby be increased because expenses

24 are now lower, and Line 26 would thereby be increased

25 because Line 24 is now higher?

kleiser
Typewritten Text
ICC Docket 13-0501/13-0517 (cons.)AG Exhibit 6.0Page 32 of 49



249

1      A.   Could you repeat the question, please?

2      Q.   My question is simply that Lines 24 and 26

3 would now be increased because expenses are down and

4 income is higher thanks to the reductions to Lines 21,

5 22 and 23?

6      A.   If average rate base is lower than year-end

7 rate base, the changes for those items would cause an

8 increase to Line 24, correct.

9      Q.   And similarly, Line 28 would likely be

10 higher, given the assumption you stated.  Income taxes

11 would be higher, and Line 29, net income would likely

12 be higher, given the assumptions you state; is that

13 correct?

14      A.   Yes.

15      Q.   And Line 31, as well, would likely be

16 higher.  Net income would be higher?

17      A.   Yes.

18      Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Now let's look at

19 Schedule FRA-4, if you don't mind.  You stated that --

20 I'm sorry.  Returning to Page 39 of your surrebuttal,

21 Line 803, you said, "Mr. Effron's modifications have

22 the effect of changing the amounts of the

23 reconciliation revenue requirement variance with

24 collar on Schedule A-4."  Do you see that?

25      A.   Could you point me to the line?
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1      Q.   Line 803 on Page 39 of your surrebuttal,

2 18.0.

3      A.   That's correct.

4      Q.   Now, looking at Schedule FRA-4, Line 3.  The

5 variance with collar is a sum of the reconciliation

6 variance balance and the ROE collar adjustment; is

7 that correct?

8      A.   Correct.

9      Q.   And the rest of this schedule shows how

10 interest is calculated on that amount; is that

11 correct?

12      A.   Yes.

13      Q.   And then the final result of Schedule FRA-4

14 is shown in Line 33, which is a -- which is the

15 reconciliation variance with interest which goes into

16 the filing year revenue requirement; is that correct?

17      A.   Correct.

18      Q.   So would it be fair to say that the -- that

19 Mr. Effron's proposed change does not change the

20 reconciliation revenue requirements through Schedule

21 FRA-4?

22      A.   Well, as I indicated in testimony, I

23 indicated that the reconciliation requirement variance

24 with collar would change under Mr. Effron's proposal,

25 and that change would occur to the extent that use of
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1 average rate base instead the year-end rate base, as

2 used in Schedule FRA-3, specifically Schedule FRA-4,

3 Line 3, variance with collar would be different, and

4 you would then have a different amount of interest

5 calculated on the reconciliation with collar

6 adjustment.  I disagree with your premise Mr. Effron's

7 adjustment would change schedule FRA-4.

8      Q.   So the adjustment would change the interest

9 on the reconciliation variance that flows through to

10 the final year revenue requirement; is that correct?

11      A.   It would change the ROA collar adjustment to

12 the extent it triggered an ROA collar adjustment.

13 That's would be the extent to which the variance with

14 collar would change.  Variance with collar -- to the

15 extent the ROA collar adjustment was triggered would

16 change, that would then change the amount of interest

17 applied to the variance with collar that carries over

18 to Schedule FRA-1.

19      Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  A question for you based

20 on your experience as an accountant and financial

21 professional.  When people in the finance business

22 talk about the capital structure of the Company, what

23 do they mean?

24      A.   I could just talk from my experience.  They

25 are referring to the capital investor deployed in the
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1 business.  And that could be a mix, typically a mix of

2 debt or equity capital.

3      Q.   Would it be fair to say that when financial

4 professionals talk about a Company's, quote, unquote

5 "capital structure," usually they mean the mix of debt

6 and equity?

7           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I'm going to

8 object to this as outside the scope of Mr. Stafford's

9 testimony.  I believe the Company has a witness who is

10 available to talk about capital structure issues and

11 the opinion of financial professionals later on, and

12 that's Mr. Martin, who is scheduled to go tomorrow.

13           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, I'm not asking about

14 the numbers behind the Company's capital.  I'm not

15 disputing that.  Rather, I'm seeking to understand

16 what is typically meant or understood by the term

17 "capital structure," because it is very much an issue

18 in Mr. Stafford's testimony and our testimony with

19 regard to changes recently made by Senate Bill 9.

20           MR. STURTEVANT:  Well, I guess if we can tie

21 it to Mr. Stafford's testimony, but, again, I would

22 just repeat that the capital structure witness is

23 Mr. Martin.

24           JUDGE YODER:  I'll sustain the objection

25 with the understanding that you can question him about

kleiser
Typewritten Text
ICC Docket 13-0501/13-0517 (cons.)AG Exhibit 6.0Page 36 of 49



253

1 certain specific parts of his testimony.

2           MR. DOSHI:  Okay.  Thank you, Your Honor.

3           JUDGE YODER:  How much longer do you have?

4 Should we break for lunch?

5           MR. DOSHI:  I'd like to break for lunch, if

6 that's okay.

7           MR. STURTEVANT:  How much more time are we

8 talking about?

9           MR. DOSHI:  I believe I've been going for 60

10 minutes.  I might take 20 more.

11           MR. STURTEVANT:  Is it Your Honor's

12 preference to break for lunch now?  I would almost

13 prefer to finish Mr. Doshi's cross with Mr. Stafford,

14 and then that would provide a more natural break

15 point.

16           JUDGE YODER:  That's fine.  If it's about 20

17 minutes, you can go ahead and finish up your cross and

18 then come back at an appropriate time for that.

19           MR. STURTEVANT:  Thank you, Your Honor.

20           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, Your Honor.

21      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Mr. Stafford, could you turn

22 to your rebuttal testimony at the top of -- actually,

23 at the bottom of Page 31?  You state there, "The

24 overall effect of Public Act 98-00105 was to establish

25 that year-end values for rate base and capital
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1 structure should be used in setting formula rates."

2 In your experience, how do financial professionals --

3 or, actually, let me back up.

4           A few minutes ago, you stated that capital

5 structure typically refers to the mix of debt and

6 equity.  Do you believe most financial professionals

7 would interpret SV9 directive to use year-end capital

8 structure that way?

9           MR. STURTEVANT:  Objection, Your Honor.  It

10 calls for speculation as to what financial

11 professionals would or would not do.

12           JUDGE YODER:  Are you going to respond, Mr.

13 Doshi?

14           MR. DOSHI: I'll rephrase the question.

15           JUDGE YODER:  Very well.

16      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Do you believe that a

17 Company's mix of debt and equity is a reasonable

18 interpretation of the term "capital structure" used in

19 Senate Bill 9?

20           MR. STURTEVANT:  Objection.  It calls for a

21 legal conclusion.

22           JUDGE YODER:  Response?

23           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, Mr. Stafford's

24 testimony is repeatedly drawing interpretations of the

25 term "capital structure" as used in Senate Bill 9.
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1           JUDGE YODER:  You're asking -- as I

2 understood, you're asking whether he believes his

3 interpretation is a reasonable interpretation?

4           MR. DOSHI:  Whether the interpretation I

5 suggested would be reasonable.

6           JUDGE YODER:  Maybe rephrase it.

7           MR. DOSHI:  Let me withdraw the question,

8 actually.  I'd like to move on to a different

9 question.

10      Q.   (By Mr. Doshi) Please refer to Schedule

11 FRD-1 of Exhibit 18.3, which is the formula rate

12 template.  At Lines 10 through 13 of Schedule FRD-1,

13 the percent that equity comprises as a percent of

14 total capital and the same percent for preferred

15 stock, long-term debt and short-term debt for Ameren

16 Illinois Company for year-end 2012, is shown.  Would

17 you agree it's appropriate to call those percentages

18 the Company's capital structure?

19      A.   I would agree they are percentages of debt

20 and equity within the Company's capital structure.

21      Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I'd like to refer to

22 Exhibit 9.0 on Page 30.  You gave an example on Line

23 686.  You said, "Let's say the Company issued new

24 long-term debt and common equity in the amount of

25 $100 million on February 1st of given year.  That
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1 additional debt and equity would be fully recognized

2 as a component of capital structure financing rate

3 base for the reconciliation revenue requirement

4 calculation."  And then moving forward a bit to Line

5 697 on Page 31, you state that under Mr. Effron's

6 method, the ROE collar computation -- I should back up

7 for a moment.  Where that says "Mr. Effron's method,"

8 were you referring to using average rate base in the

9 ROE collar calculation?

10      A.   Yes.

11      Q.   So on Line 697, it says, "Under Mr. Effron's

12 method, the ROA collar computation would only include

13 50 percent of the debt and equity issuance."  Is that

14 your testimony?

15      A.   Yes.

16      Q.   Can I post to you a hypothetical scenario?

17 What if, instead of issuing that same $100 million of

18 debt and equity on February 1st, the Company issued

19 that issued that amount on Christmas Day,

20 December 25th, hypothetically?  Would using the

21 year-end rate base then be a reasonable presentation

22 of the Company's invested capital for the year?

23      A.   Not under the EIMA, and the Public Act 98015

24 is clear that you use year-end, and I don't think

25 using something close to year-end is a reasonable
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1 approximation.

2      Q.   I'm sorry.  Could you say the last part of

3 your response?

4      A.   I don't believe using a number close to

5 year-end is a reasonable approximation for a year-end

6 balance.

7      Q.   Hypothetically, if that amount of capital

8 were issued on December 25th and then the

9 December 31st rate entered into the ROE calculation,

10 then putting aside the legal requirement of the EIMA,

11 would it be a reasonable representation of the

12 Company's invested capital for the year to use

13 year-end rate base under my hypothetical?

14      A.   Again, I believe you used to use year-end

15 capital structure year-end base rate, and you're

16 posing one component of capital structure.  You

17 ultimately need to look at the full balance of the

18 capital structure at year-end to produce the right

19 result.

20      Q.   Okay.  I'd like to move on, if you don't

21 mind, to the issue raised by AG witnesses on deducting

22 deferred income tax from the reconciliation variance

23 before calculating interest thereon on Schedule FRA-4.

24 Would that be okay?

25      A.   Sure.
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1      Q.   Please turn to your surrebuttal Exhibit 18,

2 Page 31, Line 637.  There you state, "In providing for

3 interest, the EIMA reconciliation provision

4 compensates the utility of a ratepayer for the time

5 value of money."  Do you see that?

6      A.   Yes.

7      Q.   So in the context of the interest on

8 reconciliation calculation provided for in the EIMA,

9 in that context, exactly what money from your quote

10 that I just read, exactly what money are we talking

11 about?

12      A.   Are you referring to which aspect of that

13 statement?

14      Q.   You stated that the reconciliation provision

15 compensates the utility of a ratepayer for the time

16 value of money.  Can you explain what money, or

17 conceptually what money needs to be compensated for it

18 through the EIMA process?

19      A.   That would be the reconciliation balance.

20 It could be an over or under collective balance.  The

21 utility or ratepayer would need to be compensated for

22 interest, the WACC interest rate for the

23 facility-issued balance calculated on our Schedule

24 FRA-3.

25      Q.   In the current formula rate update
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1 proceeding, the Company had an over-recovery and thus

2 the reconciliation variance involves a refund to

3 ratepayers; is that correct?

4      A.   Correct.

5      Q.   I'd like to pose a hypothetical.  What if,

6 instead of approximately 46.6 million of

7 over-collection for the reconciliation year for 2012,

8 what if it was an under-collection of, let's just say,

9 46.6 million?  So in that hypothetical, if we assume

10 that the Company actually collected $46.6 million less

11 in 2012 than its authorized revenue requirement, would

12 it be fair to say that if the Company had collected

13 the 46.6 million for 2012, then they would have had to

14 pay income taxes on those cash receipts?

15      A.   You're saying that the Company had

16 collected?

17      Q.   My hypothetical is the Company collected

18 46.6 million less than authorized in 2012.  Now I

19 suppose I'm posing a hypothetical on a hypothetical.

20 If there was an under-collection, now let's imagine

21 that the Company actually did collect the

22 46.6 million.  Let's say they collected exactly the

23 revenue requirement for 2012.  Would they have been

24 required to pay income taxes on that 46.6 million?

25      A.   Yes.  They would pay income taxes when they
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1 received that 46.6 million in cash at the time that

2 the current income taxes are actually due, and they

3 wouldn't pay income taxes at the time they record an

4 accounting entry to defer the balance.  They would pay

5 the income taxes when they were due.  And just the

6 opposite effect works in an under and over-collection.

7 Taxes are refunded at the time the money is refunded

8 to customers, not at the time that an accounting entry

9 is made to record deferred income taxes.

10      Q.   Okay.  So in a world where the Company had

11 under-collection for 2012, could we say that the

12 Company's cash position as a result of that

13 under-collection is 46.6 million times 1 minus the tax

14 rate, which I think is like 41 percent, so times 1

15 times 4 minus -- sorry -- 46.6 times 1 minus

16 41 percent worse than it would have been if it had

17 just collected its authorized revenue requirement?

18      A.   No.  The Company's cash position is

19 46.6 million worse.  It needs to collect the full

20 46.6 million with interest to be able to pay income

21 taxes, to have enough cash to pay income taxes on the

22 entire 46.6 million with interest and still provide a

23 return on the investment.  Again, just the opposite

24 works with an over-collected balance.

25      Q.   If the company collected that missing
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1 46 million in 2012 and then paid income tax on that in

2 2012, then the cash they would have left over would be

3 46 million times 1 minus 41 percent, roughly; is that

4 correct?

5      A.   On the reconciliation balance under your

6 hypothetical, that's correct.  That's the amount of

7 cash left over after the Company would have made

8 income taxes.

9      Q.   And when that -- when the reconciliation

10 variance balance gets forwarded to 2014 rates and they

11 actually collect the 46 million, they will pay income

12 tax on that 46 million; is that correct?

13      A.   Again, you're speaking under a hypothetical?

14      Q.   Yes.

15      A.   Yes.  In 2014, if there was a 46.6 million

16 under-collection, the Company would pay -- if it

17 operates correctly, the Company would pay income taxes

18 on the 46.6 million plus interest at the WACC interest

19 rate on the 46.6 million.  Once they pay income taxes

20 on those balances, what they would have left over

21 would be the return to the ratepayer after they

22 cash -- the remaining cash would be returned to the

23 utility board's investment under collection at the

24 rate of WACC interest that's authorized under Public

25 Act 98015.
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1      Q.   So the cash the Company would ultimately

2 realize from finally collecting the 46 million in 2014

3 rates would be approximately 46 million times 1 minus

4 41 percent, roughly, which is the tax rate; is that

5 correct?

6      A.   You're referring to the portion without

7 interest currently?

8      Q.   Yes, I'm specifically ignoring the interest

9 part.

10      A.   Well, the reconciliation balance, you know,

11 and AG doesn't dispute this piece, that the

12 reconciliation balance really operates no different

13 than interest.  You're entitled to recover the full

14 reconciliation balance and not the reconciliation

15 balance net a tax rate, because the deferred taxes,

16 all they are is a time difference.  They are temporary

17 in nature.  Every tax accountant understands that if

18 you record deferred taxes, they're temporary.  They

19 turn around and reverse, and the reconciliation

20 revenue capital requirement is calculated on a gross

21 base, not a net basis net of tax, the same as the

22 Company proposes for interest.  And you need to

23 calculate this balance on a gross basis, because you

24 have to get sufficient return with interest on that

25 revenue requirement to have sufficient cash on hand to
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1 pay income taxes and still provide the return to the

2 ratepayer in an under-collected scenario or provide

3 the adequate return -- or to the utility in an

4 under-collected scenario and provide an adequate

5 return to the ratepayer in an over-collected scenario.

6      Q.   Why does the Company need extra interest to

7 pay income tax out of the -- in my under-collection

8 hypothetical, why does the Company need extra interest

9 to pay income tax on the under-collection that they

10 will ultimately receive in cash in the 2014 rate?

11      A.   The interest becomes taxable to the Company

12 as a form of revenue, and you have to pay income taxes

13 on revenues including interest income, and that's why

14 you need sufficient cash to be able to pay taxes on

15 that balance.

16      Q.   Why can't the Company just pay tax out of

17 the interest income?

18      A.   If the Company paid tax out of the interest

19 income and didn't collect the full WACC interest rate,

20 it's just that.  You wouldn't be collecting the full

21 interest at the WACC interest rate, and Public Act

22 98015 is clear that the WACC interest is part of the

23 reconciliation with interest calculation.

24           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, sir.  I have five

25 more minutes, and then I'll be done.  Would that be
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1 SCADA revenues, are referred (phonetic) in 2013, we

2 would be exploring whether we can include those in

3 Attachment O, and we have started that discussion

4 internally to begin that analysis.

5      Q.   Okay.  On Page 60 of your surrebuttal, Line

6 1249, you state that Mr. Brosch's allocation of

7 92.06 percent of the fees from vacating circuits under

8 SCADA is arbitrary and that the evidence supports the

9 Company's proposal to assign or allocate zero percent

10 of SCADA revenues to electric distribution.  What

11 evidence are you referring to there at Line 1251?

12      A.   The evidence is the rebuttal and surrebuttal

13 testimony that I provided in response to data

14 requests.  I've indicated that the revenues are from

15 transmission, transmission data through SCADA.  That's

16 the purpose of the revenue, and so, clearly, if the

17 purpose of the revenue is transmission-related, then

18 it can also be distribution-related.

19      Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  I have one more question

20 that I forgot to ask a while ago when I was asking

21 about the modification to Schedule FRC-2 of the

22 template for the implementation of the new

23 depreciation rates.  Is there going to be that same

24 adjustment every year in the Company's formula rate

25 updates going forward?
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1      A.   No.  We had indicated previously that

2 depreciation rates are conducted approximately every

3 five years, so the only time that you would see an

4 adjustment would be at the time of the new

5 depreciation rate study, and that adjustment could be

6 positive or negative.  It's obviously positive in this

7 case.  Depreciation rates, by account, can go up or

8 down based upon the results of the study, and they, in

9 fact, do within this study.  On a positive basis, they

10 are increasing this time.

11      Q.   Will line -- sorry.  I've got a second

12 question.  Will Line 8A disappear or have zeros next

13 year?

14      A.   If approved, Line 8A would stay in the

15 template, because that would be the approved template,

16 and it would show zeros next year.

17      Q.   Okay.  The very last thing I'd like to do

18 with counsel's permission is introduce another cross

19 exhibit.  I have no questions for Mr. Stafford about

20 it.  The cross is a series of data request responses

21 from 13-0192, the gas case, regarding Metro East.  The

22 responses were provided yesterday by the Company.

23 Would that be all right?

24           MR. STURTEVANT:  Can I see them?

25           MR. DOSHI:  Sure.
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